
 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 15, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-15-2016.  Page 1 of 5 

The City Council of The Village, Oklahoma, met in regular session at City Hall on 
Monday, August 15, 2016, at 7:30 p.m., at 2304 Manchester Drive.   

 
COUNCIL PRESENT STAFF PRESENT 
    
Hutch Hibbard, Mayor     Bruce K. Stone, City Manager   
Chris Bernardy, Vice-Mayor    Beverly Whitener, City Treasurer 
Dave Bennett, Council Member  Leslie Batchelor, City Attorney 
Sonny Wilkinson, Council Member 
C. Scott Symes, Council Member 
 
ITEM I:  CALL TO ORDER. 
 

Mayor Hibbard called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
ITEM II: INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
 

Council Member Symes gave the invocation and led the Council in the Pledge of 
Allegiance.        

 
ITEM III:   APPROVAL OF MINUTES. 
 
 The Mayor asked if there were any corrections, additions or deletions to the 
Minutes of the August 1, 2016 regular meeting. There were no corrections, additions or 
deletions and the Council approved the Minutes of the August 1, 2016 regular meeting as 
written. 
 
ITEM IV:   CITIZENS DESIRING TO BE HEARD, PRESENTATIONS. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this is a time for citizens to address the Council on any 
matter not on the posted agenda. 
 
 Ben Mead-Harvey attended the meeting and gave the Council an update on 
activities and programs at The Village Library.  Mr. Harvey told the Council that there were 
1,500 participants in the summer reading program, which is an increase of 15% over last 
year.   Mr. Harvey also reported that the library set up a booth and a Wi-Fi Hot Spot at 
The Village Block Party on August 13.  Mr. Harvey also noted that the library is developing 
a relationship with Crossings Community Center. 
  
 Jane and Tosha Lowther attended the meeting and had several questions about 
the new housing development adjacent to Casady Manor (Crossings at The Village). The 
questions pertained to new fencing, erosion, high grass and the size and quality of the 



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 15, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-15-2016.  Page 2 of 5 

homes under construction. Note: City Attorney Leslie Batchelor subsequently answered 
most of the questions via email.  
 
ITEM V: REVIEW OF EXPENDITURES 
 

The Council reviewed the following expenditures reports: 
           
8/01/2016       

General Fund $45,054.55 
Capital Improvement Fund $3,623.38 
General Fund $15.77 
Special Park Fund $155.22 

 
8/02/2016 

General Fund $466.95 
Capital Improvement Fund $3,425.00  
 

8/11/2016 
General Fund $36,304.69 
Municipal Court Bond Fund $100.00 
Animal Bond Fund $100.00  

  
ITEM VI.  CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 08-15-2016 (A) OPPOSING STATE 

QUESTION 777 AS IT WOULD TAKE AWAY THE ABILITY OF CITIES AND 
TOWNS IN OKLAHOMA TO REGULATE FARM ANIMALS AND 
AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES WITHIN THEIR CORPORATE LIMITS AND 
URGING CITIZENS TO VOTE NO ON STATE QUESTION 777.  

 
 City Manager Bruce Stone and City Attorney Leslie Batchelor explained how the 
passage of State Question would adversely affect the ability of municipalities to ensure 
the health, safety and welfare of their citizens by prohibiting cities from regulating 
agricultural activities within their corporate limits. 
 
 After a brief discussion, Council Member Bennett moved to approve Resolution 
08-15-2016 (A) opposing State Question 777.  Council Member Wilkinson seconded the 
motion.  The vote:  Yea – Symes, Bennett, Wilkinson, Bernardy and Hibbard.  Nay – None.   
 
ITEM VII:  REPORTS:  
 

a) Manager's Report  

 



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 15, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-15-2016.  Page 3 of 5 

 

City Manager Bruce Stone reported that the monthly Sales Tax check was for 
$418,723, which is an increase of $39,997 or 10.88% over the same period 
last year.   

 
Mr. Stone reported that Oklahoma City is taking bids for a $1.7 million project 
to improve the water system in The Village.  Mr. Stone advised that the 
streets affected by this project are portions of Carlisle, Andover, Brighton and 
Westchester, which are located west of Greystone.  Mr. Stone told the 
Council that Oklahoma City would also construct a new line on Brighton from 
Pennsylvania to Greystone.   

 
The city manager reported that The Village Block Party was a great success.  
Mr. Stone told the Council that approximately 350 people came out to eat 
free hot dogs and hamburgers and that the band, Conspiracy Rejects, were 
entertaining.   
 
Mr. Stone reported on the house fire at 1606 Brighton.  Mr. Stone told the 
Council that the house was a total loss and that clutter in the home hampered 
firefighting efforts to make an interior attack.    
 
Mr. Stone noted the bids received for the Fire Stix.  Mr. Stone advised that 
the highest bid is not acceptable. 
 
The city manager advised the Council that Oklahoma State Department of 
Emergency Management would conduct a disaster simulation later in the 
year.   Mr. Stone told the Council that the name of the simulation is Operation 
Earth, Wind and Fire and that elected officials are encouraged to participate.   
 
Mr. Stone told the Council about the Larry Johnson Foundation fundraiser, 
which is on September 10 in Duffner Park. Mr. Stone advised that the 
foundation provides assistance for musically gifted children. 
 
The Council agreed to reschedule the regular meeting for Monday, 
September 5 to Tuesday, September 6 due to the Labor Day holiday. 
 
The city manager reported that a rezoning request for a redevelopment of 
existing homes (Mulford Estates and Mulford Gardens) would be on the 
agenda for September 19.  Mr. Stone also advised that Harry’s TV & Appliance  
would seek permission to build a used appliance sales and service building on 
Hefner Road. 

  
Mr. Stone explained a year-end fund transfer needed to cover a deficiency in 
a General Fund Budget line item called Intrafund Transfers.  

 



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 15, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-15-2016.  Page 4 of 5 

 

 

b) Monthly Department Reports 

 

The Council reviewed the monthly reports.    

 

Council Member Symes noted that the animal control report was 
sketchy and did not explain several incidents pertaining to vicious dogs.  
Mr. Stone advised that he would ask the City Prosecutor about the 
incidents in question. 

 
c) Reports from the Council.  

 
Council Member Wilkinson asked about the schedule for Code 
Enforcement officers to cover their assigned areas.   Mr. Stone advised 
that one officer covers south of Britton Road and the other covers 
everything north of Britton Road.  Mr. Stone advised that the policy is 
to patrol the entire city every week.   
 
Council Member Bennett gave a report on ACOG, including 911 system 
issues and the outcome of water rights negotiations between the 
tribes, the State and Oklahoma City.    Council Member Bennett advised 
that Oklahoma City would not have to worry about water until the year 
2070 or so. 
 
Vice-Mayor Bernardy asked about the new Code Enforcement officer.   
Mr. Stone advised that Ken Nelson is now Assistant Building Inspector 
and that Scott Haggy has taken his place.   
 
Vice-Mayor Bernardy asked about the possibility of using water from 
the splash pad for irrigation of the park.  Mr. Stone advised that State 
law now allows the use of grey water for irrigation and a system could 
be installed if the Council wishes to appropriate the funds needed.   
 
Council Member Symes asked if there had been any more noise 
complaints about Uptown Grocery.  Mr. Stone advised that he is not 
aware of any new noise complaints.  Mr. Stone advised that the only 
complaints he has received pertain to delivery trucks cutting through 
First Liberty Bank’s parking lot. 
 



 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

August 15, 2016 
 
 

City Council Minutes 08-15-2016.  Page 5 of 5 

Council Member Symes asked if there are any potential tenants for 
Ben’s Shops on May.  Mr. Stone advised that he had heard that some 
kind of showroom expressed an interest in the location. 
 
City Attorney Leslie Batchelor gave a brief report on a planning session 
held recently involving staff, architects and Council Member Symes and 
Wilkinson. 
 
Mayor Hibbard asked if the splash pad would close after Labor Day.  
Mr. Stone advised that the last day of the season would be on Labor 
Day, which is Monday, September 5. 

 
ITEM VIII: NEW BUSINESS 
 
 There was no New Business to come before the Council. 
 
ITEM IX: ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 9:00 p.m. 
 
______________________   ______________________ 
Mayor Hibbard    Vice-Mayor Bernardy 
 
______________________   ______________________ 
Council Member Bennett   Council Member Wilkinson 
 
______________________   ______________________ 
City Clerk     Council Member Symes 


